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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of County Commissioners
Fargus County
Lewistown, Moniana

We have audited the panying financial statements of the govemmental activilies, the business-type activilies, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Fargus County, Lewistown, Montana (the govemment) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the government's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financlal statements are the responsibility of the government's management. Our responsibility is to express oplnions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

Excepl as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable 1o financial audits conlained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Complrolier General of the United Slales. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

we about the fi Jal are free of material misstab it. An audit includs ining, on a test basis,
evidence rting the unts and discl in the financial statements. An audit also includ ing the a ing
principles usad and the significant estimates made by r nt, as well as ing the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Because we did not observe year-end inventory counts and because the govemment's accounting records ralated to inventory do not
permit adequate retroactive tests of inventory quantities, we were unable to form an opinion regarding the amounts at which inventory
was recorded in the governmental aclivities, the road fund and the aggregate remaining fund information.

Management has not recorded the other posl employment benefil (OPEB) liability and related exp A ting principles genarally
accopted in the United States of America require that the OPEB liability and related expense be recorded, which would increase tha
liabilittes and expenses and decrease nel assets for the govemmental activities, business-ype activies and proprietary funds
(oxcluding the hospital nursing home). The amount by which this departure would affect the Eabilities, net assels and expenses s not
reasonably determinable.

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had we been able to
obtain sufficient evidence to support the amounts at which inventory was recorded in the govemmental activilies, the road fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information, as described in the third paragraph and except for the effects of not recording the OPEB liability
and related expense as described in the preceding paragraph in the governmental activities, business-lype activities and proprietary
funds (excluding the hospital nursing home), the financial statements referred lo above prasent fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type aclivities, the road fund, proprietary funds (excluding the hospital nursing
home) and the aggregate remaining fund information of the govemment, as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting p Il pted in the United
States of America.

In addition, in ouwr opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairy, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of each major governmental fund (excluding the road fund) and the hospital nursing home (& major enterprise fund) of the
government as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for tha year than

ended in conformity with accounting principles generally pted in the United States of America.
Ag described in Note 1 to the fi jal its, the go t adoptad the provisions of GASE Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmantal Fund Type Definitions.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report daled December 8, 2011, on our consideration of
the government's internal control over financial reporting and an our tests of lis compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant ag ts and other The purpase of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
aver financial reporting and compliance and the resulls of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standsrds
and should be considered in assessing the resulls of our audit,




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Conlinued)

Accounting principles genarally accapted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis and
budgetary comparison information identified in the table of contents be presenled to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic i is, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain fimited procedures to the required supplementary Information in accordance
with audiing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of Inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for st with ment's responses to our inguiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audil was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statoments that collectively comprise the govemment's
financial stalements as a whole, The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizalions, and is not a required part of the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards s the
responsibliity of managament and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 1o prepare
the financial statements. The information in this schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional p Jures, incuding comparing and reconciling such information directly lo the underying
accounting and other ds used to prepare the financial stats ts or o the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole,

Oass < Assatuaies, P
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FERGUS COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the financial performance provides an overview of the govemment's financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, Pleasa read It in conjunction with our financial statements which begin on page B.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s+ The assets of Fergus County exceeded its liabiliies at the close of fiscal year 2011 by $14,960,287. Of this amount,
$2,532,281 may be used to meet the County’s ongoing operational noeds and $7,747,286 was invested in capital assets, nat
of related debt.

« The County's lotal net assets increasad by $1,192,708 as a result of this year's operafions.

» The general fund's budgeted amounts did not chango in fiscal year 2011, Actual revenues were $207,823 more than
budgeted revenues, while aciual expenditures were $385,727 less than budgeted appropriations.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide
information about the activities of the govemnment as a whole and present a longerterm view of the finances. For governmental
activities, fund statements tell how these services were financed in the short term, as well as, what remains for future gpending. Fund
financial statements also report the govermment's operations in more detail than the government-wide slalements by providing
information about the most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the
government acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the govemnment.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o e il

Go ts One of the most important quastions asked about the government's finances Is, “Is the
County as a whole better off or worse off as a resull of the year's activilles?” The Statement of Net Assots and the Statement of
Activities (pages 8 and 9) report information about the government as a whole and about iis activities in a way thal helps answer this
question. These stalements include all assets and liabilties using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
usad by most private-sector companies. All of the cument year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardiess of when
cash s received or paid,

These two statements report the net assets and changes in them. You can think of net assets—the differance between assels and
liabilitles—as one way to measuro the govemment's financial health, or financial position. Over fime, increases or decreases in net
assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need o consider other non-financial
factors, however, such as changes in the property tax base and the condition of the capital assels, to assess the overall health.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, our govemmant is divided into two kinds of activities:

Govemnmental activiies—Basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, public works, and parks depariments, and
general administration. Property taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Bmmmﬁu—mewmwwmmha{pltmalamofﬂ'lecosiofwtahmioesilprwidaaTha
Hospital and Airport funds are reported here.

Fund financial The fund fi ial stalements (pages 10 through 18) provide detailed information about the most significant
funds—nol the govemment as a whole. Some funds are required fo be established by State law and by bond covenants. Also, the
goveming body establishes many other funds to help it control and manasge money for paricular purposes or fo meel legal
responsibiiities for using certain taxes, grants and other money. We utilize the following funds:

Govemmental funds—Basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and oul of those
funds and the balances left at year-end that are avaliable for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets thal can readily be convered to cash, The
govemmantal fund statements provide a detailed shorl-lerm view of the general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financlal resources that can be spant
in the near fulure to finance programs. We describe the relationship (or differances) batween governmental activilies (reported in the
Statement of Net Assets and the S of Activities) and g ntal funds in reconclliations (pages 11 and 13, respectively).




FERGLUS COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Proprietary funds—Fees are charged to customers for the sarvices provided—whether to outside customers or to other units of the
government—ihese sarvices are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all
activities are reporied in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In facl, the enterprise funds (a component of
proprietary funds) are the same as the business-ype activilies we report in the govemment-wide statements, but provide more
detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. We use intemmal service funds (the other component of
propristary funds) to report activiies that provide supplies and services for other programs and activities—such as the Self-
Insurance fund,

Fiduciary funds—Fiduclary funds am used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds use the same basis of accounting as proprietary funds. We exciude these activities from the other financial statements
because we cannot use these assets lo finance our operations. We are responsible for ensuring that the assels reported in these
funds are used for their Intended purposes.

THE GOVERNMENT AS A WHOLE

As noted sarlier, net assets may serve over time as a usoful indicator of a government's financial position. In our case the assets of
Fergus County exceeded its liabliities at the close of fiscal year June 30, 2011 by $14,960,287. Of this amount, 52,532,281 may be
used o meet the County's ongeing operational needs, and $7,747,286 was invested in capital assets, net of related debl. There are
not currentiy any business-lype activilies restricted net assets. The restricted net asssts for the govemmental activities are subject to
external resources on how they are used.

NET ASSETS:
Govemmenial — Busieesshpe Totals
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and other assets § 8451204 § 8804272 § 1174905 § 1196487 § 0,626,199 § 10,000,758
Capital assets 6,130,630 6,568, 789 1,805,538 1,348,039 8,036,177 6,917,808

Total assels 14,581,833 14,374,041 3,080,443 2 544,526 17,662,376 16,918,567
Oither Rabiliies 404018 276,713 326,856 2723 730,872 548,104
Long-term labiliies | 1.160.268 1,754,191 810,951 £48,653 187,217 2,602.884

Total lisbiiilies 1.564.262 2,020,804 1,137,807 1,121,084 2,702,089 3,150,088
Mot assets:

Invested in capital assels,

net of related deol 8,015,070 5,400,847 1,732,216 1,320,574 T.747.286 6.739.421
Restricied 4,680,720 2,680,364 - * 4,680,720 2,680,364
Unrestricted 2,321,861 4,253,026 210.420 93.868 2,632,281 4,347,794

§ 13017651 § 12!ME|37 $ 1042636 § 1423442 § 14060287 § 13,767,579
——— — —

FERGUS COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:

Governmental _— Business-typs Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenuss:

Program revenues:
Charges for senvices $ 1284831 § 1335443 § 208501 § 201341 § 1493422 5 1,536,784
Operating grants and i 1,077,365 1,021,056 - - 1,077,365 1,021,056
Capital grants and contribulions 497,278 200,589 696,835 204,997 1,194,113 414,686

General revenues:
Taxes 3,588,367 3,485,085 - - 3,588,367 3.465.085
Licenses and parmits 600 820 - - 600 820
Interpovemmental 1,358,069 1,346,447 - - 1,356,068 1,346, 447
Unrestricted imvestmant earmings 04,639 111,733 33468 39,554 132,105 151,287
Miscellansaus 80,273 57,714 3 - 80,276 57.714
Gain on disposal of capital assets 243,505 3 . - 243,595 -
Total mvenuss 8,227,017 7.547 BBT 838,895 445 892 9,165,012 7,993,779

Expanses:

General government 1,074,354 1,880,548 = - 1,874,354 1,888,548
Public Safoty 1,608,026 1.582 255 - - 1,608,026 1,502,255
Public works 2,324,053 2271975 - - 2,324,053 227,975
Public health ED5,656 853,250 - - 805,566 953,260
Social and economic senvices 109,258 188,075 - - 186,258 189,075
Culture and recreation 550,450 613,206 - - 560,450 613,208
Houwsing and community development 15,846 7,600 - - 15,840 7.600
Alrpart . - 384,030 3614 364,030 343514
Hosgpital - - 30,6711 38,116 30,671 38,118
Intarest on long-term detst 1,860 3574 - = 1,860 3574
Total expenses 7,578,503 7,520,583 304,701 381,630 T7.873.204 7,802,213
Transfors 25,000 30,000 (25,000) (30,000) - =
Change in nel assets 673,614 57,304 510,184 34,262 1,102,708 91,566
MNet assets, beginning 12,344,137 12,286,833 1.423 442 1,389,180 13.767.578 13,676.013
Mel assets, ending $ 13017851 § 12344137 § 1942636 § 1423442 § 14960287 § 13,767,578

Net asssts for govemnmental activities increased $673,514. The increase is mainly due to capilal grants for courthouse and fairgrounds
improvemants, Net assets for busingss-type activities increased $519,184. The increase can be attributable to a capital grant for airport
improvements.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The fund i ial provide detalled information about tho major (most significant) funds. To be reported as a major fund, a

fund must meet each of the two following criteria. Govemnments may choose to report other governmental and enterprise funds as
major funds, even though they do not meet this test. The General fund is always reported as a major fund.

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expendi P of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent
of the comesponding element total (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all funds of thal category or type (that Is, total governmental or total
enterprise funds).

The same element that met the 10 percent criterion is at least 5 percent of the corresponding element total for all govemmental and
enterprise funds combined.

General Fund — The goneral fund is the County's primary operaling fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except for those accounted for in ancther fund. At the end of the fiscal year, fund balance was $1,379,534. Overall fund
balance increased $239,040.

Road Fund - The road fund accounts for resources accumulaled and payments made for the maintenance, repair and construction of
county-owned roads, At the end of fiscal year 2011, the fund balance of the road fund was $1,065,128, an increase of $146,682, The
increase is mainly due to various projects that did not start before year-end.

PILT Fund — The PILT (payment in lieu of taxes) fund accounts for resources accumulated from the federal govemment for payments in
lisu of taxes. Expenditures from the fund are at the discretion of the Board of County Commissionars, During 2011, resources from the
PILT fund were distributed to other funds to fund their budgets. The overall fund balance decreased $320,614. This decrease ocourred

]



FERGUS COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

because of funding neaded for flood damage that needed to be fixed immediately and because of the continling road department DEQ
claanup.

Airport Fund — There was an overall increase in cash and cash equivalents for the airport fund of $110,963. There was significant
construetion In progress at the close of 2011 that was related to airport improvements. The project is funded through the federal
govemment.

Hospital Fund ~ This fund accounts for the activilies of the government's hospital capital lease and debt service activities.

GENERAL FUND ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT BUDGETARY VARIATIONS

There were no budget resolufions done that affectad the general fund budget for 2011,

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Fergus County's investment in capital assets, net of related debt, as of June 30, 2011, was $7,747,286. This invesiment in capital
assets includes property, buildings, improvements, machinery, i and ir ture (Le. roads, bridges, elc.). For more
information related to capital assets, see the notes to the basic financial statements.

Compensated absences aro a liability of the County for unpaid vacation leave, sick leave, and compensatory time, The liability typically
increases on an annual basis as a result of increasing wages and a general growth in the number of total compensable hours. The
amount of this lisbility at June 30, 2011, was $369,132, with a decrease of §1,926, due to reliring employses and emplayes i A
Other debt outstanding consists of noles payable, with various malurities.

THE GOVERNMENT'S FUTURE

Forgus County sustained several milions of dollars’ worth of damage on hundreds of sites due to the spring snow melt and the
disastrous fooding that followed. Our road and bridge depariments, along with our DES and sheriff's depariment have all been working
diligently 1o work through this. There is extensive paperwork with FEMA and with projecis not covered by FEMA thare are grants to
apply for and administer if we are successful in getting them. It is estimated that some of the work will not be completed for a couple of
years.

The following faclors were considerad when preparing the Fergus County Budgets for fiscal year 2012:

»  Flood damage is one of ow top financial concems &t this tima.

«  Lack of funds to repair the necessary roads and bridges, along with a shoriage of stafi due to a lack of qualified applicants corlinues to be
an issue for the road and bridge departments.

. Wm?mfudmamamwfuwdfmmummm.inanmnoiwnhndloﬂnmad,brldge.
weed, and sheiff.

« The Penta cleanup at the road department has been and continues to have a huge negative financial impact on the County. This project
has cost more than anyone anticipated,

«  The jail continues to need updatas and improvernants.

« The Department of Revenue |s considering moving out of the Fergus County Courthouse. If they move, we will lose the rent they currently
pay. I they stay, there will be some remodeling required fo give them the space they are asking for.

» The Govemor line-item vetoad TSEP monies for Fergus County, While we are working with ofhers to try o gel this reversed, it is stil
necessary to make the necessary bridge replacements, etc., that this money would have helped to fund.

»  Energy efficiency work continues o be done at the Fergus Counly Fairgrounds.

+  Conlinuing on a rotation schedule with replacement of large equipment for the road and bridge depariments is essential and is always a
budgelary concern.

» Fergus County applied for and was approved for an Intercap Loan to help with road and bridge projects. 'We are paying it back as we are
able alang with keeping up with the required payments to contractors, elc., requires extra paperwork and planning.

»  Conoem over the possible discontinuance of PILT monies forces us to look to the future years for funding options.

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents

Invesiments

Receivables:
Taxes and assessments
Governmenis
Roundhouse road
Stop loss reimbursement
Weed

Other

Inventories

Restricted assets:
Cash and equivalents
Invesiments

Net investment in capital lease

Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress
Depreciable capital assets, net

FERGUS COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

Governmental

§ 4898905
2,830,811

249 365
249,196
15,574
38,525
13,602
12,188
345,130

67,687

6,062,952

10,528

168,406
90,451
625,669

937,650
967,888

_

Total

$ 5048175
2,710,958

240,365
200,632
15,574
36,525
13,602
22,712
345,130

168,406
90,451
825,660

1,005,337
7,030,840

e

Tolal assets 14,581,933 3,080,443 17,662,376
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable:
Vendors 243,592 67,009 311,501
IBNR 137,901 = 137,901
Due to Central Montana Medical Center - 258,857 258,857
Deferred revenue 22,523 - 22,523
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:
Notes and capital leases 80,630 220,536 281,168
Compensated absences 36,717 1,188 36,913
Pollution ramediation obligation 687 525 = 687,525
Due in more than one year:
Notes and capital leases 54,930 578,455 633,394
Compensated absences 321,455 10,764 332.219
Total liabilities R e 5 1,137,807 2,702,089
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debl 6,015,070 1,732,216 7,747 286
Restricted for:
General government 378,304 - 379,304
Public safety 184,226 - 184,226
Public works 1,828,167 - 1,828,167
Public health 911,911 - 211,911
Social and economic services 58,679 - 58,679
Culture and recreation 110,631 - 110,631
Housing and community development 360,784 - 360,784
Capital projects B47.018 - 847,018
Unrestricted 2,321,861 210,420 2532 281
Total net assets § 13|01? 651 $ 1|ﬂ42 638 ! 14|§00‘23?

See notes to basic financial statements.



FERGUS COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Yaar Ended June 30, 2011

Nat (Expenss) Revenue and
Program Revenue Changes in Nat Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for ~ Grants and Grants and  Govemmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Confributions __Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmantal activitles:
Ganeral governmant 51974354 § 205173 § 214229 § 164,906 § (1,390,045) § - 5§ {1,380,048)
Public safety 1,608,026 111,880 260,198 - (1,235,848) 1,235,948)
Public works 2,324,053 422,748 294 882 156,339 (1,449,984) - (1,449 984)
Public health 895,556 263,460 283,370 - (348,726) - {348, 726)
Socisl and economic services 199,258 - - - (189.258) - (199,258)
Culture and recraation 558,450 281,570 24 585 176,033 (77.261) (77.261)
Housing and community
davelopment 15,846 - - - (15.846) . (15,848)
Intarest on long-tarm debt — 1,980 - - = (1.960) 2
Tolal governmental activities __ 7,578,503 _ 1284.831 _ 1077.365 __ 497276 _ (4719.029) - (4719029
Business-typa activities:
Hospital 30671 - - - - {30,671) (30.671)
Alrport 364.030 208,591 - 696,835 541,396 541,396
Total business-type activities 394,701 208,581 = 656 835 - 510,725 510,725
Total s ?ia?alzm g‘l 493422 § 1 D??IBBS $1 !94!113 (4,719,028) 510,725 (4,208,304)
General revenues:
laxes 3,588,367 - 3,588,367
Licenses and penmils: 600 - 600
Intergovemmental 1,356,069 - 1,356,069
Unrestricted investmant earnings o8.639 33,465 132,105
Miscallaneous 80,273 3 80,278
Gain on disposal of capital assels 243,585 - 243,595
Transfers 25,000 (25,0009 -
Total general revenues and transfers 5,382 543 8,469 5401012
Change in net assets 673,514 515,184 1,192,708
Net assets - beginning 12,344,137 1473442 _ 13.767,579

Net assots - ending

Sea notes to basic financial statements.

13.017.661 § 1942636 §14.960.287
=i

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables:
Taxes and assessments
Governments
Roundhouse road
Weed
Other

Due from other funds

Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable-vendors
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Noncurrent portion of advance to funds
Restricted:

Public health
Social and economic services:
Culture and recreation
Housing and community development
Capital projects

Committed
General govenment

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabllities and fund balances

See notes to basic financial statermnents.

FERGUS COUNTY
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2011
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Road PILT Funds Funds
§$ 954201 § 6OS4m1 § 723,007 $ 1084287 § 4357076
512,474 373,493 388,270 1,065,601 2,330,838
109,420 38,112 - 101,833 249 365
14,632 - 234,564 249,198
- - e 15,574 15,574
+ - - 13,6802 13,602
= - - 12,186 12,186
- - - 66,507 68,507
- 50,081 - 285,088 345130
$ 1!590_31? 3 1!151'!157 $ 1I111 277 3789223 § ?EBQB ATd

$ 101863 § 53917 § . § 87812 § 243502
- - - 66,507 66,507
109,420 38,112 - 130,930 287,452

211,283 92,029 - 294,249 597,561

- 50,081 = 295,069 345,130

= - - 65,545 65,545

- - . 358,978 358,978

L - - 177,948 177,949

- 1,015,067 = 434,356 1,440,423

- - - 904,699 904,699

- - - 48,879 48878

- - . 100.343 100,343

- = - 285238 295,239

- - - 784,580 794,580

- - 1.111.277 85,834 1,187,111
1,379,534 = - (66,507) 1,313,027
1,379 534 1,085,128 1,111,277 3,494 074 7,050,913
51!593.&1? $1,157,157 $1,111.277 3789223 § 7648474
10



Total fund balance, governmental funds

Net assets of governmental activities

FERGUS COUNTY
REGONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANGE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

$ 7050913

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net assets are different

because.

Capltal assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and.
therefore, are not reported in the fund financial statements, but are reported in the
govemmental activities of the statement of net assels. 6,130,638
Certain other long-term assets are not available lo pay current period expenditures

and, therefore, are not reported in the fund financial statements, bul are reported in

the govemmental activilies of the statement of net assels. 284,939

“The assets and liabilities of the self-insurance fund (internal service) are not included
in the fund financial statements, but are included in the governmental activities of the
statement of net assets. 731426

Some liabilities (such as notes payable, capital leases, poliution remadiation
obligations and compensated absences) are not due and payable in the current
period and are nol included in the fund financlal statements, but are Included in the
govemmental activities of the statement of net assets. (1,160,266)

$ 13,017,651

See notes to basic financial statemants. "

FERGUS COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Other Total
Governmental  Govemnmental
General _ Road PILT Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes/assessments $1877852 § GB57.775 § - % 1157851 § 3593578
Fines and forfeitures 84,960 - - 10,202 95,162
Licenses and permits 600 = - 26,400 27,000
Intergovernmental 287,897 821,566 - 1,560,107 2,668,570
Charges for services 389,866 80,085 - 684,222 1,163,253
investment eamnings 67,824 9 665 16,500 84,898
Miscellaneous 18,279 - - 112,632 130,911
Total revenues 2,727,378 1.468.415 565 3,568,014 7,764,372
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govemment 1,466,852 - 15,103 390,044 1,871,980
Public safety 1,287,502 - - 84275 1371777
Public works - 1,514 382 - 950,157 2,464 539
Public heallh 187,334 - - 663,000 840,334
Social and economic services 8,390 - - 159,933 168,323
Culiure and recreation - - - 464248 464,248
Housing and community development . - 1,865 13,981 15,846
Debt service:
Principal - - - 162,534 152,534
interest and other charges - = - 1,860 1,860
Capital outlay 18,000 245,362 . 580,376 854,738
Total expanditures 2 o7a 1.750.744 16,968 3,460,508 8,206,298
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (241,700} (291,329) {16,403) 107,506 (441,926)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital leasa - 108,181 - - 108,181
Sale of capital assels - = - 30,000 30,000
Insurance recoveries 401,300 968 - 4,857 407,134
Transfers in 134,412 328,862 - 158,584 621,858
Transfars out (56,081) - (304,411) (192,366) (551.858)
Todal other financing sources (uses) 480,640 438,011 (304.411) 1,075 615.315
Net change in fund balances 238,940 146,682 (320,814) 108,581 173,389
Fund balances - beginning 1,140,594 918,446 1,432,001 3,386,393 6,877,524

Fund balances - ending

See notes to basic financial statements.

21.379.534 810555128 § 1111277 _$ 3494074 § 7050913
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FERGUS COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - tofal govemmental funds

Amounts reported for gavemmental activities in the statement of activities are different

because:

Govemmental funds report outiay for capital assets as expenditures because such oullay
uses current financial resources. In contrast, the statement of activities reports only a
portion of the outlay as expense, The ouflay is allocated over the assets’ estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense for the period.
This s the amount by which capital cutlay ($854,738) exceeded depreciation
($507,453) in the current period.

Govnmmaniulﬁmdaumﬂhaemmmmhmhuledanmnmanue
because it provides current financial resources. In contrast, the statement of activities
reports only the gain on the sale of the asset. Thus, the change in net assets differs from

the change in fund balance by the book value of the assel disposed of,

Governmental funds do not present revenues that are nol available to pay current

obligations. In contrast, such revenues are reported in the statement of activities when

eamad.

Govemmental funds report debt proceeds as currenl financial resources. In contrast, the

statemeni of activities treats such issuance of debt as a liability. Governmental funds
report repayment of debt principal as an expenditure, In contrast, the statement of

activities treats such repayments as a reduction in long-term Rabilities, This amount is the

difference betwaen debt issued and debt repayments.

Pollution remediation costs are recognized as expenditures in the govenrment funds only to

the extent they are expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources. In
contrast, the entire poliution remediation obligation Is recorded in the statement of net
assets and the liability reduced as the cosls are paid.

Some expenses rep in the
financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Compensaled absences

Interhal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,

such as self insurance, to individual funds. The ehange in net assets of the self insurance

internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.

Change in nel assets of governmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements.

of aclivilies do not require the use of current

$ 173,389

347,275

213,595

(3.479)

547,595

1,877

(651,181)
§ 673514

FERGUS GOUNTY
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011
Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Hospital Internal
Nursing Home Airport Total Service Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ . § 149270 § 148270 § 541829
Invastments - 80,147 80,147 290,973
Due from other governments - 50,438 50,436 -
Receivables:
Siop loss recelvable - - - 36,525
Other = 10,526 10,526 -
Total current assets - 290379 200,379 868,327
MNon-current assats:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 168,406 - 168,406 -
Investmenis 80,451 - 90 451 -
258,857 - 258 857 -
Net investment in capital lease 625,669 - §25,650 -
Capital assets:
Land - 13,261 13,261 -
Construction in progress - 024,389 924,389 -
Bulldings and improvements - 5,002,645 5,002,645 -
Machinery and equipment - 190,041 180,041 -
Less: accumulated depreciation ¥ (4,314,788) (4,314,798) -
- 1,805,638 1,905,538 -
Total non-current assels B84 528 1 538 2,790,064
Total assels 884,526 2185817 3,080,442 869,327
LIABILITIES
Current liabilties:
Accounts payable - 67,900 67,999 137,901
Due to Central Montana Medical Center 258,857 - 258,857 -
Compensated absences - 1,196 1,196 -
Motes payable 200,383 20,143 220,536
Total cument abilities 450 250 89,338 548,588 137,901
Mon-current liabilities:
Compensated sbsences - 10,764 10,764 -
Notes payable 425278 163,179 578,455
Total non-current liabilities 426276 163,943 589,218 =
Total liabllities 884,526 253,281 1,137,807 137,801
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related debt - 1,732,218 1,732,216 =
Unresfricted = 210,420 210,420 731,428
Total net aseets 3 L ] 1!942;338 $ 1@42@ § 731428

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FERGUS COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Supplies
Purchased services
Fixed charges
Administration and insurance
Claims
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating loss
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue
Miscellaneous revenug
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenue (exp )

Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Hospital Internal
Nursing Home Alrport Total Service Fund
$ - § 208591 § 208591 $ 143508
- 208, 208,591 143,508
- 96,858 96,858 -
- 18,614 18,614 -
- 61,635 61,635 -
= 5268 5,258 -
= - - 183,501
- - - 579,937
- 180,545 180,545 -
- 362,810 362,910 763,438

- (154.3189) (154,319) (618,932)

Loss before contributions and transfers

Capital contiibutions
Transfers out

Change in net assels
Tolal net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending

See notes to basic financial statements.

30,671 2,765 33,466 13,741
(30.671) 0, 123]_ (31 .79:1’1 ;
- 1,678 1878 13741
: (152.641) {152.641) (608,181)
. 696,835 696,836 -
L (25,0000 (25.,000) (45,000)
; 519,184 519,194 (651,191)
. 1423442 1423442 1382617
s . 5 1942836 § 1064263 § 731426
15

FERGUS COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activilies
Mursing Intemal
Home Airport Total Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS:
Cash received for health insurance premiums s - % - - § 2590903
Cash received from customers - 198,065 198,065 -
Medical claims paid - - - (487,705)
Cash paid to employees . (95,715) (96,716) -
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and sarvices - (86,167) (B6,167) (183 501)
Met cash provided (used) by operating activities - 16.183 16,183 (411,303)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash transferred out - (25,000) (25,000) (45,000)
Miscellaneous cash received - 3 3 .
Net decrease in amount due to CMMC (857) - (857) -
Met cash used by noncapital financing activities (85T) (24.997) (25,854) (45,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIMITIES:
Cash paid for purchase of capital assets - (683,154) (683,154) -
Capital contribution - 646,380 646,399 -
Cash received from noles - 175,000 175,000 -
Principal payments on debt (192,650} (20,143) (212,793) .
Interest paid (30,671) (1,120) (31,791) -
Met cash provided (used) by capital financing activities (223,321) 116,982 (106,338) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in investments 116,730 (B0,147) 36,843 407,843
Payments received on capital lease 102,650 - 192,650 -
Interest recoived 30671 2,795 33,466 13,741
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 340,111 (77,352) 282.758 421684
Change in cash and cash equivalents 116,933 30816 146,748 (34,618)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 52,473 118,454 170,927 576.448
Cash and cash equivalents - ending § 168,406 § 149270 § 317878 § 541829
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss $ - $ (154,319) $ (154318) § (618.932)
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
De ton - 180,545 180,545 =
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable - (10,526) (10,526) 116,397
Increasa in accounts payable - 432 432 92,232
Increase in compensated absences - 51 51 -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ¥ - § 16183 § 16183 §_(411.303)
Nencash Investing, noncapital and capital financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets on account 3 - § 62840 § 62840 S -
Noncash capital contribution - 60,436 50,436 -

See notes to basic financial statements.



FERGUS COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011
External
Invastment Agency
Trust Fund Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents § 8464838 § 472140

Investments 4545789 -

Taxes and assessments receivable - 1,054,883

Total assels 13,010,627 $1.527,023

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable - § 472,140

Due to others - 17,106

Due to special districts - 28,708

Due to state - 167 422

Due to schools - 636 4895

Dua lo citiesfowns - 205,152

Total labilities - 81 .szrloczs

MET ASSETS

Held in trust i 13,010,627

See notes to basic financial stalernents.

FERGUS COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

External
Investment
Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions $ 27567212
Interest earnings 163,309
Total additions 27,720,521
DEDUCTIONS
Withdrawals 28,600,960
Administrative 3,220
Total deductions 28,804,189
Change in net assets {883.668)

MNet assels - baginning 13,894,295

Net assels - ending $ 1301 0.627

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FERGUS COUNTY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financlal statements of the govemment have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
as applied to governmental units. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Is responsible for estabiishing GAAP for
stale and local governments through its p cements (; ts and pretations). Private-sector standards of accounting and
financial roporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed In both the gavemment-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements 1o the extenl thal thase standards do not conflict with or contradicl guidance of the Govemmental Accounting Standands
Board, Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sactor guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The govemment has elected not 1o follow subsequent private-sector guidance, The
government adopted the provisions of GASB 1 Mo. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Govemmental Fund Type Definitions.
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporing standards for all governments thal report governmental funds. It
astablishes crileria for classifying fund balances inta spocifically defined classifications and clarifies dafinifions for governmental fund
types, The govemmant's significant accounting policies are described below.

Regorting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the government has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions and authorites.
The govermment has also considered all potential component units for which it Is financially accountable and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their ionship with the g nt are such that exclusion would cause the govemment's
financial statements to misleading or incomplete, The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board hae set forth criteria to be considersd
in determining financial accountability, These criteria include appainting a voling majority of an organization's goveming body and (1)
the abiity of the govemment to impose its will on that or ization or (2) the potential for the ion to provide specific benefits to,
or Impose specific financial burdens on, the government, Based on the aforementionad criteria, the government has no component
unis,

Related Organizations - The Board of County Commissioners is responsible fior appointing members of the boards of other
organizations, but the government's accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments.

The govemment-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the govermment. For the mmwaﬂoctofmrhmdwﬁﬁhrhasbeen removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which nommally are supporied by taxes and Intergovernmental revenues, are repored goparately from
pusiness-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support, Internal servico fund aclivity is eliminated to
avoid "doubling up” revenues and expenses. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the gos wide financial

The statament of activities demonstrates the dagree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly |dentifiable with a specific function or Identifiable activity. Program revenues
include 1) charges for services which report fees and othar charges provided by a given function or identifiable activity 2) operating
grants and contributions and 3) capital grants. Taxes and other items not properly included among prog are reported
instead as gencral revenues.

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, propriatary md:dumry 'iundm Major Individual govemmental funds and
L=

m:wmumpﬁwmsmmdmmm i in the fun

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic rasources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial stalements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses an
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the fiming of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar ltems are recoonized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met,

Govemmental fund financial stalements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the madified accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the currant period or soon enough theraafter 1o pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the government considers revenues 1o be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability Is Incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expanditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recordad only when payment is due.

Property taxos, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considared to be susceptible to accrual and s0
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when tha
qualifying expenditures have been Incurred and all other grant requirements have been mot. Entitlements and shared revanues are
recorded st the time of receipt or earfier if the susceplible to accrual criteria are mel. All other revenue Iltems are considered to be
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FERGUS COUNTY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

measurable and avaflable only when cash is received by the govemnment.

Prop y funds distingulsh op ting revenues and expanses from nonoperating items. Operaling revenues and expenses genorally
rasult from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and of the intemal service funds are charges to customers for sales and
sarvices. Oporating expanses for enterprise funds and Intemal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depraciation on capital assels. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoparating
ravenues and expenses.

When both d and tricted
unrestricled resources as they are needed.

are available for use, it is the govemment's poficy to use resiricted resources first, then

The govemment reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is used to account for all financial resources, except those required by law or administrative action to be
accounted for in another fund. The general fund is always reported as a major fund In the govemmental fund statoments.

Speﬁalmmhndsmusedmmmmrmmadsmm that are icted by law or
administrative aciionwupsndihraluspedﬁcpurpmmoﬂwmandausewim or capital projects. The following special
revenue funds are reported as major,

The road fund accounts for resources accumulated from property taxes and state enlilement and payments mada for the
maintenance, repair and construction of county-owned roads.

The PILT fund ts for r ted from the federal govemment for payments in liau of taxes. Payments
made from the fund are at the discretion of the Board of County Commissioners.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The hospital fund accounts for the activities of the govemment's hospital capital lease and debt sefvice activilies.
The airport fund accounts for the activities of the povernment's airport Services.

Additionally, the government reporls the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for the ﬁnwﬁgdsanﬁupmddodbymdewmmmwmmmmwor
gencies on a cost basis.

The government’s investment frust fund accounts for the extemnal portion of the cash
resources that belong to legally separale entities,

t poal, which re

Agency funds are custodial in nature and are used to account for assats that the governmant holds for others in an agency
capacity.

The County maintains and controls an i ing of funds belonging to the govemment and also of funds held by the
County Treasurer befonging to legally separate entiies, such as school districts, fire and water districts and other special districts. The
investment pool is managed by the County Treasurer and overseen by the Board of County Commissioners. The Counly Treasurer is
responsible for setting the investment policies for the pool, reviewing and monitoring investments to ensure the County's investment
policies are met and ing Investmants are in complance with Stale statute.

School districts and ofher legally separale districts within the County hold their funds with the County Treasurer. The districts have, at
their option, elected to participala in the County’s investment pool. 61% of the investment pool belongs to these districts.

Allowable investmants include direct obligations of the United States Government, repurchase agreements, savings or time deposits in
a state or national bank, building and loan assaciations, gs and loan iations, or credil unions insured by the FDIC, FSLIC, or
NGUA and the State Short Term Investment Pool (STIP). STIF is classified as a 2a7-ike pool, and as such, uses amortized cost to
report unit values. The pool unit value is fixed at §1 for p and redempti Income is tically reinvested in additional
units. The govemment did not provide or obtain any legally binding guarantees to support the value of the units.

Investments in the pool are reported at fair value. Fair valuo is determined annually, based on year-end markel values. Short-term
investments are raporiad at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash on hand, demand, savings and time deposits, STIP and short-
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FERGUS COUNTY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

term Investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition are considered cash equivalents.

Invastment income from the pool is allocated to individual funds of the County and to the extemal participants based on the fund or
pariicipant's cash and investment balance at the end of each month. The net change in fair value of the pool is also allocated to
individual funds of the County and to the external participants based on the fund or participant's cash and investment balance at the
end of the year,

The govemment charges a 2% administrative fee to all pariicipants in the pool. The fee is deducted prior to distributing interest to the
County funds and pool participants. The administrative fee charged during the year was $5,322,

Recslvables and Payables

In the fund financial statements, transactions between funds that are representalive of lending/borrowing arrangements oulstanding at
the end of the year are referrad to as “duo toffrom other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding botween the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the govemment-wide ial sta is as | bal * In go tal fund
financial statements, advances between funds are offset by an amount reported as nonspendable fund balance o indicate that they are
not available for appropriation and are not expendable avaliabl ial

Moﬁmmwrawedhmmrufmhﬁwalﬁar.besndme.msﬁnen&asdﬂ'-apriw.lanuarv‘t. Real property taxes
are billed as of November 1 and are payable in two payments, November 30 and May 31, Unpaid taxes become delinguent on
December 1 and June 1. thpemnalpropnﬂylaxusreduemdpﬂynblemerﬂaﬂbewmdehqmntl’ebnmﬂ.ﬁwww
{axss are maintained and collected by the County Treasurer. No allowance is made for uncollectible taxes as they are not considered
significant.

Met Investment in Capital Lease

Net investment in capital lease Is a direct financing lease in which Fergus County (lessor) Is leasing to tha Central Montana Medical
Facilities, Inc.-CMMF (lessae) land, buildings and equipment. The lease transfers substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership
from the lessor to the lessae. In a direct financing lease, the lessor the in purct of the properly by the lessee.
Fharu:hnwcommthehosﬁhlmdmrﬁwhmmmammhmwofdsbth Fergus County's name.

|nventories

Minmmmdmmhmnwmnmmdummesmmwmmmmnmmpumm,

Reslricted Assels

The Board of County Commissioners dotermined it was in the best interest of the citizens of the County to ostablish short-tarm

($222 578) and discretionary ($36,279) cash and investment accounts within the Hospital enterprise fund. These cash accounts were
established through contributions from CMMF and remain the property of CMMF,

Capital Assets
Capitel assets, which include property, plant, equipment. and infrastruciure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items)
are reporied in the licable gor tal or business-type activities in the go nt-wide financial statements. The

gave relroaciively. Capital assets are defined by the government as assels
with an Initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 for machinery and equipmant, $20,000 for buildings and improvements and $35,000
for infrastructure and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimaled historical
cost if purchased or construcled, Gonu-l:ulodeopuulamwmourdadaiesﬁmhdfﬂrrrwkﬂvaluaathmddmaﬂm.m
costs of normal maintenance and mpaistrmdonotaddbhevuaafhem«mﬁﬂymdendmlhasmnmcamma.

Malor outiays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of caplital assets of business-lype aciivities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. There was no
interest expensa incurred by the government for capital assets.

Depreciation on capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Assels Years
Buliding and improvamants 10-100
Infrastructure 100
Machinery and equipment 5-26
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Collections Not Capitalized

Cortain collactions of historic arifacts and works of art are not reporled in the accompanying financial statements. These assets have
ncllbeencapihlizedbanauﬁelhsymeetalufihemndiionsﬂwtquaﬁﬁa&maacdladimswlmmtmqmmdmbewpilall.zed,
These conditions are the collections are held for public exhibition or 1 in the furth e of public service, not held for financial

galn; the collections are protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved; and any sale proceeds are expected fo be used lo
acquire other items for the collections.

Compensated Absences

Liabilities iated with accumulated fion and sick leave are accrued when incurred in the ¢
financial statements, A kability for these amounts is rep d in the g
result of employee resignations or retirements.

t-wide and proprdetary fund
ntal funds only if they have matured, for example, as a

Employees eam vacation leave ranging from 15 fo 24 days per year depending on the individual's years of service. Accumulated
vacation Is restricted under State statute 10 a maximum accumulation of two times the amount eamed annually. Sick leave is
mmuhtsdﬂ12dmwmuﬂmﬁnﬂnﬁm&mlknarrmmmatmayhe lated. Upon or resignation, an
employee is eligibte for 100 percent of the accumulated vacation leave and 25 percent of the accumulated sick leave,

Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabllities in the applicable govemmental aclivities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assels. In the fund financial statemonts, the face amount of debt issued is reported
as an other financing source.

Eund Equity

in the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

thpﬁlam.uldm&ddﬁ!-wmdmpnﬁmwmgmmﬁw-mmwﬂmdmdﬂﬂonand
the ding k dnms‘mmu_mm.mmummmum ributable 1o the acg W of

by
improvement of those assels.

Wmlasm-mmdmmmmmmp!medmhusaalmhy(ﬂsmwupssuﬂlasm.gmm.
contributors, of laws or regulations of other g of (2) law through pr or ]

wmnd:um-ﬂnhmtmmuummulmdeﬂﬁﬂmd'mﬂoﬂﬂ'u’muuﬂhcwmmm.mtdmmm.‘
Proprietary fund equity Is classified the same &s in the govermnment-wide stalements.

In the fund statemenits, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The following classificalions describe the relative
gth of the spendi {rmink

Nenmm-mutmuwtmmuMwinwﬂmmummm“Iegﬂlyawmﬂhfmuirwlu
be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent anly for speclfic purposes because of constitutional provisions or enabling leglslation or because of
that are ly d by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or lations of other go s,

Commitied fund balance - amounts ined to specific p by the ¢ itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority
(i.e., goveming body). To be reparted as committed, amounts cannol be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highast
level action to remove or change the constrainl.

Mwwwm-mmwlmwmhawiﬁcme. Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an
Mﬂwmwdymmmgommbmwmmnmm.

Unassigned fund balance - amounts fal are available for any purpose. Positlve amounis are reported only In the goneral fund.
Beginning fund balances for the governmental funds have bean restated lo reflect the above classifications.

The government establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of a rasolution. This Is typically done
through adoption or amendment of the budget.

When an expendilure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and ted fund bal is ble, the g
considers restricied funds o have been spent first. When an expendilure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund
balances are available, tha govemment considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
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finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the governing body has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Usa of Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, aclusl results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Deficit Fund Equity

The Roundhouse Road (§66,507) fund had a deficit fund balance as of June 30, 2011, The Roundhouse Road deficit is expected lo be
eliminated through the recovery of construction costs from hookup fees or a contribution from the General fund.

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

The government's cash, cash equivalents and Investments are reporied as follows:

Govemmental activities $ 7,529,716
Business-typo activities 486,274
Fiduciary funds 13,482 767

$ 21500757

Total carrying value of cash, cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Cash/Cash
Equivalents Invesiments Total
Cash on hand $ 1326 § - % 1,325
Cash in banks:
Demand deposits 5,274 4687 - 5,274 467
Savings deposils 3,231,571 - 3,231,5M
Time daposits - 752,198 752,198
Brokers:
Money market 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
U.S. Government securities - 6,595,000 6,505,000
Short-term Investment Program (STIP) 4,455,000 - 4,455,000
Repurchase agreements 191,196 - 191,196
$ 14153550 7.347.188 _§ 21,500,757

Cusfodial Cradit Risk—Deposits. Custodial credit risk i5 the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposils may not
be: returned to it. The govemment does not have a deposit palicy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2011, $8,435,781 of the
govemmant's bank balance of $9.508,807 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $3,870,022
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank’s
trust department not in the government's name 4,566,759

$8,436,781

Stale statutes require that the governmenl obtain securities for the uninsured portion of deposits as follows: 1.) securities equal to 50%
of such deposits if the instituion in which the deposits are made has a net worth to total assets ratio of 6% or more, or 2.) 100% if the
raitio of net worth to total assets is less than 6%, State statutes do not specify in whose custody or name the collateral is to be held. The
amount of collateral hald for the government's deposits as of June 30, 2011, exceaded the amount required by state stalute.
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The investment pool portfolio as of June 30, 2011 is listed below. The sacurity type percentage is based on the book value ratio of the
speciﬁcsacuﬁtfimestmerﬂlypemmetclalpwﬁclh.

Security Name Coupon Maturity Par Book Value Fair Valua % of Total
Certificates of deposit 75t02.40%  Verous § 752198 § 752,198 § 752198 10.24%
U.8. Govemment securities 1265102.45%  Various 6,595,000 6,595 000 8,576,887 89.76%

§ 7347198 § 7320085

Inlerast Rate Risk. The govemment does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, However, under state statute, an investment may not have a
malturity date exceading 5 years, except when the investment is used in an escrow account to refund an cutstanding bond issue in
advance.

Credit Risk, Allowable investments include direct obligations of the United States Government, repurchase agreements, savings or time
deposits in a state or national bank, bullding and loan associations, savings and loan associations, or credit unions insured by the
FDIC, FSLIC, or NCUA and the State Short Term Investment Poal (STIP). STIP is classified as a 2a7-like pool, and as such, uses
amortized cost to report unit valuos. The go t has no i ! JndkvathMrmBlnMnmldldm.The
Short-Term Invesiment Pool (STIP) maintained by the State of Montana has certain investments In derlvalives. GASB requires the
nature of the underlying securities and market, credit and legal risks be disclosed. Reference to the audit of the Stato of Montana would
identify the level of risk assoclated with STIP.

Investments made by the government are summarized below. The investments that are represented by specific identifiable investment
securilies are categorized in the following manner: Category 1-Insured or registered, with securities held by the govemment or its agont
in the governmant’s name; Category 2-Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent

in the government's name; Category 3-Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counturparty, or by its trust department
or agent but not in the govemment’s name.
Custodial Credit Risk Calegory Carrying Fair
1 2 3 Amount Value
Repurchase agreaments H - § - § 191196 § 191,186 § 191,196
Brokers:
Money market - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
us. G 1t securities 1,000,000 - 5,505,000 6,595,000 6,576,887
;1500135000 $ - _§ 6,786,196 7,766,196 7.768,083
STIP 4,455.000 4,455 000

i! 2 241!193 $1 2!223!083

Following is the condensed schedule of changes in net assets and nel assets for the iInvestment pool for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Internal Extemal Total

Mot assels - baginning of year § 0,220,106 $ 13894285 § 23,114,401
Contributions from participants 17,008,010 27,567,212 44 575,222
Investment earnings 112,778 153,300 266,085
Administration expenses (2,102) (3.220) (5,322)
Distributions to participants (17,848,660) 28,600,969 (46,440,629)

Met assets - end of year § 8,480,130 § 13!ﬂ10 627 _§ 21,500 757
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Net Investment in Capital Lease

The County entered into a lease agreement with Central Montana Medical Facilities, Inc. (CMMF) on April 1, 1889. The County leases

land, buildings and equipment to CMMF. The lsase Is classified as a direct financing lease. The

laase as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

of net investment in capital

Business-type
Activities
Minimum lease payments receivable § 669,966
Less: uneamed income _ f4a007)
E 525 669
Fulure minimum lease payments are as follows:
Year ending Business-type Aclivitios
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2012 § 200393 § 22979 0§ 223322
2013 208,448 14 874 223,322
2014 216,828 6.494 223,322
i EZS!BBO i 44 2897 i Bﬂﬂlﬂﬁﬁ

Roundhouse Road Receivable

§14,612 of the Roundhouse Road receivable is not expacted to be collected within one year.

Capital Assats
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011

Govemmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land $ 55187 $ 12500 % - B 67,687

Construction-in-progress 316 - (53,316) =
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 108,503 12,500 (53,316) 67,687
Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings/improvements 5,724,787 437,708 (74,825) 6,087 670

Machinery and equipment 5,101,579 551,861 (208,385) 5,535,055

Infrastructure 527,678 180,811 - 708,489
Total capital assets, being depreciated 11 4 1,170,380 (283,210) 12,331,214
Less accumulated depreciation for;

Buildings/improvements (2,178.798) (145,051) 13,504 (2,310,255)

Machinery and equipmant (3,793,867) (349,146) 208,385 (3,834 B48)

Infrastructure !IU,ﬂQ:’;I (13,266) - 23,359
Total accumulated depreciation (5,982.778) (507 ,463) 221,878 (6,268,262}
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,461,266 662,917 (61.231) 6,062,852
Governmental activities capital assets, net 13 5,569!?6‘3 § 675417 S (1 14547) § 6 130,639
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Balance Balance
July 1,2010 _ Additions  _ Deletions _ _June 30, 2011
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, nol being depreciated
Land § 132861 S - % - § 13,261
Construction-In-progress 201,940 722,449 - 924,389
Total capital assats, not being depreciated 715201 122,449 - 937,650
Capital assets, being deprecialed
Buildings 115,181 - - 115,181
Improvements other than buildings 4,977 464 - - 4,977,464
Machinery and equipment 174,446 15,595 - 190,041
Tolal capital assets, being depreciated 5,267,001 15,5695 - 5,282 686
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (44,573) {1.841) . (46,414)
Improvements other than buiidings (3,930,838) (161,540) - (4,092,378)
Machinery and equipment 158,842 (171 - 176,006
Total accumulated depreciation (4,134.253) 180,545 - (4.314,798)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,132,838 (164,950) - 967,888
Business-type activities capital assefs, nel § 1,348,039 $ 557499 § - 1 538
Depraciation expense was charged as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government § 50438
Public safsty 56,718
Public works 293,698
Public health 12,041
Social and economic 7922
Culture and recrealion 83646
Total depreciation-governmental activilies 5 50?@
Business-type aclivities:
Airport § 180,545

The composition dlnhrhmbﬂm(dneimhﬂoherfum}sschuneﬁl).mﬂ.mm}sl&d of the Roundhouse Road fund owing the

USG Loan fund $66,607. $962 is expecled to be repald next fiscal year.
Interfund transfers consisted of the following

Transfers
In
Govemmental activilies:
General § 134412
Road 328,862
PILT -
Internal service -
Nonmajor governmental funds 158,684

Transfers
Out Total
§ (55081) § 79331
- 328,862
(304,411)  (304,411)
(45,000) (45,000)
(192 ,366) (33,782)

$ 621,858 $ (596.858) § 25,000

Business-type activities:
Alrport $ -

——

5.000) _§ (25,000)

Transfers are made lo finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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Capital Leases

The govermment has antered into certain capital lease agreements under which the related equipment will becoma the property of the
govemment when all terms of the lease agreements are met. Assels acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Aclivities

Machinery and equipment $ 245504
Loss: d iati (17,542)

3 228,052

The future minimurm lease obligations and the present value of these minimum lease payments, as of June 30, 2011, are as follows:

Year ending  Governmental

June 30 Activities
2012 % 57,310
20m3 57,310
Total minimum lease payments 114,620
Less: it rep ting & 4 (6,438)

Present value of minimum lease payments

g 108,181
Long-Term Debt

During 2004, the County issued a Hospital Revenus Note to payoff the 1893 revenue refunding bonds. The govemment pladged net
rental payments from the Central Montana Medical Facilities, Inc. (CMMF) lease to pay debt service. If the net rental payments from
CMMF bocome insufficient, the nole is backed by the full faith and credit of the County by an ad valorem fax levy upon all taxabie
property in the County. Notes payable, including the Hospital Revenue Note, are as follows:

Original Interest Governmental Business-type

Amount Tem Ratle Payment Activities Activities
Alrport-2006 - 8,250 10 yrs 2.50% Annual 1 - 8§ 4125
Airport-2007 14,232 10 yrs 3.63% Annual - 8,539
Airport-2010 3,947 10 yrs 1.63% Annual - 3,158
Airport-2011 140,000 10 yrs 1.63% Annual - 126,000
Airport-2011 35,000 10 yrs 1.83% Annual - 31,500
Fair equipment-2008 29,555 4yr 0.00% Annual 7,388 -
Hospital Revenue Note 1,980,000 10 yrs 3.98% Semi-annual - 625,669

$ 7388 § 798,891

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable is as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
June 30, Principal Interast Total Principal Interest Total
2012 § 77388 § - § 7088 § 220536 § 25053 § 246489
2013 - - - 228,501 17,535 246,126
2014 - - - 236,971 8,790 245,761
2015 - - - 20,143 1934 22,077
2016 - - - 20,143 1,572 21,715
2017-2021 - - - 72,607 2,934 75,541
$§ 7388 § - 8§ 7388 § 798891 § 658718 § 857700
Pollution Remediation Obligation
Tne County received a notice of violation from the Depariment of Environmenial Quality (DEQ). The notice stated the Counly violated
the Hazardous Waste Act by unlawfully disposing of yus waste and operating a | jous waste m ) nt facility without a
parmit. The DEQ issusd an administrative order on consent that required the County to remit a work plan to the DEQ thal oullines the
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County's plan 1o remove and properly manage used oil and hazardous waste, The cleanup must be completed by December 2011. The
County recorded a Rability, which tolals $687,525 at June 30, 2011, to address required environmental cleanup costs. The estimate of
costs used to estabilish the liability was developed through site ysis by indapendent engineers retained by the County, The
liability could change due to price increases, changes in technology, or other factors. There are no expected recoverles from other
responsible parties or from the County’s insurer.

Long-tarm liabllity activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as lollows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2010 Additions Refirements  _June 30,2011 _ One Year

Governmental aclivities:

Motes payable § 150922 § - § (152534) § 7388 § 7388
Pollution remediation obligation 1,235,120 - (547,595) 687,525 687 525
Capital leasos . 108,181 - 108,181 53,242
Compensated absences 359,149 - (1,877) 357172 A5717

Governmenlal activity long-term liabilites _§ 1,754,181 B 108,181 _§ _ (702.106) $ 1,160,266 § 783872

Balance Balance Dua Within
July 1, 2010 Additions Retirements _ _June 30,2011 _ One Year
Business-type activities:
Notes payable § 836784 § 175000 § (212,793) § 798,001 § 220,536
Compensated absences 11,908 81 - 11,960 1,196

Business-type activity long-term liabilities _$ 343I693 § 175051 § (212,793) g 610,951 $ 221,732

For the govemmental aclivilies, notes payable are liquidated with resources accumulated in the Fair CIP Voted Levy fund and capital
leases are liquidated within the Road fund. absences are pald from the fund in which the employee is paid, Pollution
cantrol remediation obligations are liquidated with Road and PILT fund resources.

Condult Dabl

Te provide for the construction of improvements to the County-owned hospital, the County issued Healthcare and Boarding Home
Fagilitios Revenue Notes amounting to $525,000 in 2003, In August 2006, an additional $1,500,000 note was issued for equipment.
These notes are special limited obligations of the County, payable solely from and secured by a pledge of Central Montana Madical
Eaciliies, Inc. revenues. The notes do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the County or the State, and accordingly
have not been reported in the basic financial statements. As of June 30, 2011, Healthcare and Boarding Home Facilites Revenue Notes
outstanding were $123,715 and $166.843, respectively.

NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION
Risk Management

The govemment ts exposed to varlous risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; professional i

(i.e., ermors and omissions); workers on (1.e., employee injuries); medical insurance costs; and environmental damages. A
variety of methods is used to provide insurance for thase risks. Policies, transferring all risks of loss, excent for relatively small deductible
amounts, are purchased for theft, damage or o n of essets, professional liabilities and employee medical costs. The govemmant
participates in a state-wide public risk pool, MACO, for workers' compensation coverage. The government pays monthly premiums for its
smployes injury insurance caverage. The agreement for formation of the pool provides that it will be self-sustaining through member
premiums. There are no deductibles or maximum covarage limits in the plan. The government also participates in MACO's Joint Powers
Insurance Authority which offers insurance for olher nisks of loss. Setiled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage In any of the past three fiscal years, Given lack of coverage avallable, the government has no coverage
for potential losses from environmental damages.

Wﬂw‘
At year-end, the government had commitments outstanding, in the form of contracts, of approximatety $2.4 million, prmarily for

construction projects at the airport. Addltionally, the governmant received a commitment letter from the Montana Board of Investments to
loan the County $399,000 for emergency repairs. The loan is payable over 15 years, with an interest rate of 1.95%.

Amounts raceived or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal
govemnment. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liabllity of the applicable funds. The amount,
if any, of exponditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determinad at this time, although the government expects such
amounts, if any to be immaterial.
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The govemnment |s a defendanl in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinabie, in the opinion
of the government's counsel the resclution of these matters will not have a material adverse efiect on the financial condition of the
govemment,

Salf-l ce

During the year ended June 30, 2011, employ of the g nt were d by a medical self-insurance plan (the “plan"),
Employees, at their option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay contributions for dependents. The government did not contribute to the
plan and is using available cash fo fund the employer share. Claims were paid by a third party administrator acting on behalf of the-
government.

The administrative contract between the govemment and the third party administrator is renewable annually and administrative fees and
stop-loss premiums are included in the cc | provisi The g t was protected against unanticipated catastrophlc
individual or aggregale lass by stop-loss coverage through Montana Joint Powers Trust (MJPT). Stop-loss coverage was in effect for
individual claims exceeding $26,000 and for aggregate loss, which is based on a factor determined by MJPT. The aggregate stop-loss.
coverage was $646,446.

The costs associated with the medical sell-insurance plan are reported as interfund transactions. Accordingly, they are treated as
operating revenues in the internal service fund and as operating expenditures of the governmental and enterprise funds. The liability of
the medical self-insurance plan includes incurred but not reported claims, The liabllity as of June 30, 2011, is based on the requirements
of G tal ting Standard Nn.10.M1iul1roquh-uhstalinhmufofdsimberepoﬂad'rfinlurmaﬂonnﬁeﬂotheiswameﬂ
the financlal statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The liability includes an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported.
Because actual claims liabilities depend on such plex factors as Inflation, changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the
process used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Changes in the claime liability amount during
fiscal years 2011 and 2010 were:

Curent Year
Claims and
Liability Changes in Claims Liability
July 1, Estimates Payments June 30,
2010-11 § 45660 § 570037 § (487,705 § 137801
2008-10 27,335 518,407 (498,163) 45,669

Interlocal Agreements

The City of Lewistown and Fergus County entered Into an agreement to fund & library for City and County residents, Fergus County
Jevied 1.4 mills in 2011 for library purposes and contributed $56,470 for the year ended June 30, 2011, The City maintains the library
accounting records and includes the financial activities of the library in its financial statements.

The Gity-County Airport is owned and operated jointly by the Cily of Lewistown and Fergus County. The operation of the airport is
accounted for by the County as an enterprise fund. All capital assets are recorded within the County's accounting records. The airport is
administered by a five-member board, consisting of the City's manager, a City-appointed member, one County commissioner, a County-
appointed member and one member-al-large appointed by the Airport Board. The budget is approved by the controlling members. The
Airport Board exercises control over the airports normal operations.

The City of Lewistown and Fergus County entered munqmmmwmemma;umdmmmmm
City judge for the City. The City contributes forty-five percent of fines and assessments collected or 25,000, whichever is greater. The
County maintains the accounting records and remits & monthly accounting to the City.

Jointly Gevemed

Central Montana Health District Number 6 (CMHD)

The CMHD, which was formed September 1987, was 4 under the provisions of Montana Code Annotated. The District was
formed to provide for the salaries of sanitarians. District members make contributions to Fergus County (responsible for record keeping
and reporting), based on population,

e h gntral Moniana R ".l= wantal heain Lenie

The Fergus Counly Mental Health Center i a sateliite office of the Soutn Central Montana Regional Mental Health Center located in
Billings, Montana. The County belongs lo Region Mo. 3 which ists of sleven ties. The District was created under the
provisions of Mantana Code Annotated (MCA). Each County is representad on the Board by one of its county commissioners, Fergus
County contributed $14,254 during fiscal year 2011, The purpose of the Canter Is 1o infiale preventive mental health activities for
statewide mental health programs and lo perform other duties as listed in MCA.
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Fergus County Council on Aging

The Fergus County Council on Aging is a satellite office of the Area Il Agency on Aging (Area Il). Eleven counties belong lo Area Il.
Fargus County contributes money to Area Il each fiscal year for the purpese of matching federal grants that Area Il obtains. During the
year ended June 30, 2011 the County contributed $28,856 for matching purposes.

Retirement Plans

The govemment participates in three statewide mandatory cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit retirement plans. The Sheriffs
Retirement System (SRS) covers the County Sheriff, Undersheriff and Deputy Sheriffs of the County. The Public Employees Retiremant
System (PERS) covers other County employees. The Teachers' Retirement System (TRS) covers the county superintendent. The plans
are established by State law and are adminislerad by the State of Montana. The plans provide retirement, disability, and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries.

Beginning in fiscal year 2002, eligible members of PERS had a 12-month window fo choose between the PERS-defined benefit
retirement plan (DBRFP) or the PERS-defined cor ibution reth t plan (DCRP). Eligible new hires have a 12-month window during
which they may choose to ramain in the PERS-DBRP or join the PERS-DCRP. Mombers may not be active in both the defined
contribution and defined benefit reirement plans. The choice is irevocable. For members that choose to join the PERS-DCRP, a
percentage of the employer contribution Is used to maintain the funding of the defined benefit plan.

The plans issue a publicly available financial report that Include financlal staterments and required supp y inf tion, Tho
reports may be obtained from the Public Employees’ Retiremant Board, 100 North Park, P.O. Box 200131, Helena, Montana 58620-
0131, telephone (406) 444-3154,

cnrkibutimmesiur&-eplmsmmquimdamlde&amhadnysmlw.ﬂmmmmmm.mmdnapommeofmw
payroll, were as follows:

_Employer, _Employee __Total
SRS 10.115% 9.245% 19.360%
PERS 7.070% 6.900% 13.970%
TRS 7.A470% 7.150% 14.620%

The State of Montana contributes .1% and 2.49% per year to the PERS and TRS plans, respectively, on behalf of the employer. The
State of Montana contribution has not been recorded in the financial statements.

The amounts contributed to the plans during the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were equal fo the required contributions for
each year. The amounts contributed by both the governmant and its employees (including additional voluntary contributions by
employoes as permitted by State law) were as follows:

2011 2010 2008

SRS $105,249 $104,470 $104,587
TRS 5,676 5,530 5437
PERS 338205 _ 325955 _ 301,034

$449.130 §43‘5!934 $411,068

The GASB has issued the foliowing pronouncements:

o In Decamber 2010, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) approved Statement Mo. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1988 FASE and AICPA Pronouncements, The
provisions of this stalement are effective for pariods: beginning after D bar 15, 2011.

o In November 2010, the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approved Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporing
Entity: Omnibus, an amendment of GASE Siatements No. 14 and Mo. 34. The provisions of this statement ama effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2012.




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FERGUS COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES
Taxes and assessments

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Pubiic safety
Public health
Social and economic services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Insurance recoveries

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Met change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

See notes o required supplementary information.

Budgeted Amounts

Actual

Original Final Amounts
§1,737656 $1,7376856 § 1877852
78,000 79,000 84,060
500 500 600
285851 285,851 287,867
360,548 360,548 389,966
50,000 50,000 67,824
6,000 6,000 18,279

2,518,555 2 519,555 2727378

ST

1,372,504 1,372,504 1,466,852
1,381,838 1,391,836 1,287,502
187 465 187,465 187,334
7,000 7.000 8,300

396,000 396,000 19,000
3.354 805 3,354 805 2,968,078

(835,250) (835,250) 241

447,780 447,780 401,309
127,483 127 483 134,412
(65.081) (55,081) {55.081)

082 52018 480640

$ (315,068) § |315@] 238,840

1,140,504

$ 1370534

N



FERGUS COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE FERGUS COUNTY
BUDGET AND ACTUAL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Road Fund BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 PILT Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Actial Budgeted Amounts —
Criginal Final Amounts
REVENUES —Original__ ___Final__ __omodB— inal Final Amounts
Taxes and assessments § 559552 § 550852 § 551,775 REVENUES |
Intergovernmental 1,037,106 832,695 821,566 Investment eamings = = B 565
Charges for services 27,000 27,000 89,065 Total revenues - - 565
Investment eamings - - g
Total revenues 1,623,658 419,247 1,468,415 Eﬂ’mD{TURESZ
urmen
EXPENDITURES General government 1,182,081 877,880 15,103
Current: Housing and community development - - 1,865
Public works 1,797,546 1,797,546 1,514,382 Total expendilures _iiez091 ___ Brres0 16,068 16,068
Capital outlay 173,181 281,362 245,362
Excess expel 1,182,081) __ (677,680) __ (16.403)
Total expenditures 1070727 _ 2.078808 1750744 B GEpiaTee Over rnant —{1,182,091)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over OTHER FINANCING USES
expenditures (347,069) (659.661) (291,329) Transfers out - (304,411) (304,411)
Total other financing uses - (304.411) (304,411)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Long-term debt issued - 108,181 108,181 Net change in fund balance $(1,182.001) 1,182,091 (320,814)
Insurance recoveries - - 068
Transfers in 28,380 232,771 328 862 Fund batance - beginning 1,432 081
Total other financing sources 28,360 340,852 438,011
Fund balance - ending § 111 1,277
Net change in fund balance H !318 709) $ !3!8!?09! 146,682
Fund balance - beginning 818,446
Fund balance - ending § 1,085,128
See notes to required supplementary information. 32

See notes to required supplementary information.
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FERGUS COUNTY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 20, 2011

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Money may not be disbursed, expended or obiig d excepl p to an appropriation for which working
capilalisnrw!lbcauaﬂable.meﬁmlbudgellshga!yemedbyﬂ'mgweﬂhgbodybymlalerdme
second Monday in August or within 45 days of receiving cerlified taxable values from the Department of
Revenue, after holding public hearings as required by state statute. Budgeted fund expenditures/expenses
are limited by state law to budgeted amounts. Budgets may be amended for circumstances described by
slate law, The budgeted amounts as shown in the financial stataments are as originally adopted or as
revised by legal budget transfers and amendments, if applicable. All appropriations, except for construction:
in-progress, lapse at year-end. The govemment does not ullize a formal encumbrance accounting system.

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




FERGUS COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Feder| P-m#n mmor Ralumed ko
Fednral Grantor®ass-Svough CFDA Bairce Grasbar! Baanee
GrantoriCusier of Program Title _Numear m m Huly1,2010 _ Recsipts  _ Gxpendiures Otmer _dune 30, 2011
Driract Program:
Alrport Improvement Program 20100 DOT-FAGENM-2020 & 108803 § - % 53 § 530 0§ S -
Airport Improwement Program 20408 DOT-FAIONG-2030 294,821 - 243,300 290,000 (22 ey
Alrpert Imprevamont Program 20900 DOT-FAI0NM-2054 2,530,083 - 347 553 060,304 mmw
Aipon Improvement Program 20108  DOT-FATINM-Z0H 132425 - - -
Siilotal 511,380 BO0.013 (1833 {50,4%6)
Passed Mrough Me Mortana Depariment of
Ailtary Affsirs-Disasier & Emargancy Sevicas
Ditvisden:
Halesias
Training and Planrieg Granls 20703 HMHMP.055-00.01-00 11470 16.162] 652 = =
Sustotal E.162) 8,162 - =
Passed Mot of )
Highwrery Plannireg and Conatbracion 20208 STPE 14{25) 180.357 (1,476) 103,278 147,810 1476 44,834)
Higtweay Pinning ard Consinacsan 0.0 ETPE 14{18) 3123 - 123 2128 = 3
Subscint 1 478} 131,398 178,008 1478 {44634
Tols U.§, Dopartmant of Transpartation ___Gfsm _ T4mpe0 _ EW0S (45 [5070)
L5, Oopanmant of Jusfice.
Direct Program:
Bidisiprool Vst Parinarship Program 1|70 SUn || RO& E120 1510 = oS o8 - -
Sublotal - ™8 o8 -
Passed through the Mentans Board of Grime Comral;
Crima Vicim Assistance 18.575 ORNDT-G0454 34000 (11,882) 11,882 -
Crine Victim Assistance 10576 10-V01-80811 T SO 1 1 il {8,250)
Hutsalal o .B!] M5 31,877 8. 250)
Toisl .5, Departmant of Jugtica JLLEL "] 35298 32 888 - (6,290}
\.5. Dippactment of Homelang Securily,
e Montana D
Mlitry Affsirs-Dissster & Emengancy Services Division.
Ermergoncy ar Grants WTO042  2000-EP-E9-0000 35,508 (4,264 404 - -
Granis 7042 2000-FPED0018 41,875 1,137 ”Hf - (B2}
nainl —ldgey 28401 _ 3007 —Rr0
Homalard Secury Grast Program $TOST  R00O-SS-TO-0005 17806 - 17506 3,758 (14,047}
Sustolal 17,808 3758 _ (40T .
Total U.S. Deparimant of Homeland Security [4.204) 43207 718 (14,087} (o020}
L& Dipanmenl of Hesh and Huinin Sondces,
Passed Prough tha Mantana Department
of Patilc Heafth and Human Sances:
Mstarmal and Child Hagth Services
IBiock Granl 1o e Gisies 0 1107-5-01-0570 3,008 - a8ss 3,085 -
Matasmal and Child Hoath Sendcas
Biock Grant (o e Slses Qe 11075010350 1,400 - 1,500 1,500 - -
Mastarnal and Chid Hesth Senvices
Bk Gaanil 1o s Blmes W@oM  1107-811-0080 1 137 "
Mstesrinl and Chid Hesin Senices
Bock Cranl o the Siales (=R 11-07-501-014-0 1,678 - 11875 11678 -
Sablolal D 17377 a2 = -
[Passed Mrough fhe Monana Stale Unkersity.
Centors for Dissass Centrol mad Provantan
vatigatians snd Teenical Assistancs. 3283 GIS3-11-W3300 15,000 - 11,250 15,000 - (2.780)
Centers for Dissasa Control snd Prevention
Ievastgations sad Techeical Assistance 2200 GZEG-00WIZHE 22,000 {3,750) 3750 - - -
of Pukic Hoallh and Human Senvices
Gantars for Disensis Cantral and Pravention
Ivvantigations and Technical Assrstanca BE 10-07-3-01-003-0 34,8600 (3.581) Tz 413 -
35

FERGUS COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federsl Pass-Bwough Progeam of Ratamed ko
Fedensi GranmrPass-threagh CFDA Grantor's P Bafance Gremloe! Dalarce
GrantonClusser of Program Tiile _MNumber Asmount _ _Ay1,2010 _ Ruowpis  _Experduns _ Othor June 30, 2011
Centars for Dissase Conirol and Prevention
Investigations and Technical Assistance iz 1073000080 51,640 38508 40023 - (8,118
Butitons (7,331) 01,220 86,754 - {11,885
IV Provention ActviSos-Hoallh Depariment Based  §3040  08-07-4-51-005.0 4,035 - 1257 1,588 w41
IV Prevertion Actviies-Heslth Dopariment Based 83940 10-07-4-54-008-0 4,00 (245) 33T 3,020
Bubiotet N - T SO (7 SO | - B
pmmunization Granis 3258 1107-4-31-065-0 4680 - 2340 352 {1189
Immunization Grants 23288 11074310140 5,705 - 2800 0,580 [ARE
Irrerairizalion Grants §3.288 10074010550 4,580 [rd) 3510 1,450 (1678 -
immunigation Grants G368 10-07-4-1-014-0 o108 (3,074) 4018 4 =
Subloim (4356) 13318 9,800 [1,578) (2.325)
Putslic Hewtn Emergency Praparadne sl m0sE  11-0TE1D 165,132 - 85322 53296 - (13814)
Putilc Healh Emargency Preparmnass 008 10078110100 M7 12,100 00810 20855 _ (82358)
it __tzm0 _ wssasp _ wiedet (5236 (B4
IBroventiva Hoalth and Heaih Servicas Block Grant. 93981 11-07-511-008-0 . NS SR .. SRt -
‘Subtotal - 1,782 1782 = .
Famiby Pianning Servicas P17 11075110000 0120 - i 30,130
Sabiotsl - = 0420 30,120
Total U 5. Deparimest of Heallh snd Hursan Services 184 283 383 207 939 (54,003) (28.445)
Dirmet Frograms:
Bankhead Jones Fam Temanl A 15.909 HiA fL408 = 12,408 12408 - =
Subiioeal - 12,408 13408 - =
Fnfugs Rewsnes Sharng 15,850 L1 s - A0 460 =
Subibotsl - 460 460 - -
Total U5, Dapariment of the Inkeser . 12,608 12,008
1.5, Department of Enoroy.
Pissad rough the Mosana Department of
Esnirinmantsl Quaity.
ARRA - Ensegy EMciency and Consqrvaten Block
Grart Program, Recovary Aol 81,128 o180 100, 15% . i 184900 - {84,008)
Tolal LS, Department of Enargy - s toasos - {184,§06)
\LE. Depanment of Agrouture.
Passad themugh the Montana Deparimant of Maturad
Rasausces and Consenvation
Coaperative Fovestry Assistancs: 10884 Wik 20,000 13,890 13,830
Buibtatal —_— 138 a0 -
Passed trough Moriana Stale Audtor's Offick:
Serure Payments for States and Counbiat Cartaning
Fadoral Lands 10685 MR GEATE - 65478 B ATE - -
Subhoial - 548 BEATE .
Tatst U5, Depariment al Agnculire T 308 e
Tous Fedors Avasss S0 imae 8 IAST S8y 3 Qo
Mo o t of =
NOTE A - BASIS OF ACCOLNTING
T o of foderal mwards is 8 summarny of ralated fo e County's federal @ward programs.

1h L wlh, grant terms and condiions, wiich i

= enerally scoaptiel




FERGUS COUNTY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FEDERAL
AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

2010-13.AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGAM, CFDA NO. 20.106, GRANT NO. DOT-FADSNM-2020, GRANT PERIOD YEAR
ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Criteria: The OME Clrcular A-133 Compliance Supplement Cash Management requirements dictate that when entities are
funded on a reimbursement basis, program costs must be paid for by entity funds before raimbursement is requested from
the Federal Govemnment.

Condition: For the County's Alrport Improvement Program grant (CFDA No. 20.106), we requested and received
nent for engl i professi al services botween B and 170 days prior to actually disbursing the wamrants.

Cause: Unknown.
Effect: Mon-compliance with grant terms and conditions.
Recommendation: The auditors recommended that we establish effective cash management procedures that will either
minimize the time elapsing between fhe transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and the disbursement of those funds or
request reimbursement afler the disbursement has actually boen made.
Cument Status: Implamented

2010-14.ALL MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS
Criteria: Our auditors were engaged to assist in the pi jon of the g t's financial statements and schedule of
expendilures of federal awards (SEFA). The government ensures the quality of its financial statements and SEFA by

engaging a qualified audit firm with expertise in govemmental audits and by reading a preliminary drafl of the financial
statements.

Condition: We did not have specific controls In place lo review the selection and application of accounting principlas and
resulling disclosures and presentations within the financial statements and SEFA.

Cause: We are a small organization with limited resources.

Effsct: It Is common within the governmental sector Lo rely the audit firm to prepara the financial statements and SEFA;
howsver, an audit firm cannot be considered part of the govemment's intemal control by professional standards cumently in
affect. Sinca some presentations and disclosures may be material to the financial statements and SEFA, this weakness In
intemnal control would be classified as material.

Recommendation: The auditors recommended that we continue to read our draft financial statements and SEFA and
ensure the quality of the document and the preparer.

Curmrent Status: This finding is repeated in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as finding 2011-12.

Criteria: Segregation of duties refers to assigning tasks among personnel so that no one person handies substantially all
aspects of a transaction.

Gondition: In many financial areas, including federal award programs, the o nt lacks segregation of duties.

Cause: The extent to which the govemment can segregate duties s limited based on the number of personnel, their skill
set and work load, and organizational structure,

Effect: The risk of errors or Iregularities occuming and not being detected in a timely manner increases when a lack of
segregation of dulies exists.

Recommendation: There are inherent inefficiencies with full segregation of duties and inherent risks with the lack of
tion of duties. The cost versus benefits for both should be considered. The auditors recommended that we
continue lo evaluate our segregation of duties and when possible assign tasks to strangthan controls,

Gurrent Status; This finding is repeated in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as finding 2011-12.
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OLNESS & ASSOCIATES, P. C.

BRENT D. OLNTSS, CPA CeRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

CukT D, WSS, CPA

EnnEsT 1. OuNess, CPA

2810 CENTRAL AVENUE, SUITE B
BILLINGS, MONTANA 59102
(#06) 252-623)

FAX (806) 2456922

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of County Commissioners

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activitios, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregale
remaining fund information of Fergus County, Mantana (the govemnment) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively
comprisa the govemment's basic financlal statements and have issued our report thereon dated December B, 2011, The report included
an explanatory paragraph to describe a change in accounting principle. In addition, the report on governmental activities, the road fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information was quallfied because materials and supplies invenlory was not recorded. Also, the report
on govemnmental activitios, the businass-type activities and proprietary funds (excluding the hospital nursing home) was qualified
because management has not recorded the other post employment penefit (OPEB) liability and related expense, Except as discussed In
the d we ducted our audlt in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicabls to financial audits contained in Government Auiting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
Unitad States.

Intemal Control Over Financial Repoding

In planning and performing our audit. we considered the govemment's intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
our audiing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
aplnion on the effectiveness of the govemnment's internal control over financial reporiing. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the govemment's intemal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was.
ot designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial roporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficlencies, or malerial woaknesses have bean
|dentified. However, as described In the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in
intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencias thal we consider to be
significant deficlencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or oparation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the nomal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and comect misstaterents on a timely basis. A material weakness Is
a . or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility thal a material misstalemant
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and comected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses. (Findings 2011-1 through 2011-7)

A significant deficiency Is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies In internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yel important enough to merit ion by thosa ged with g We consider tha deficiencios described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies. (Findings 2011-8 through 2011-11)

Complience and Other Matiers

As parl of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the government' financial stat ts are free of rial misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, Howaver, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to ba reported under Government Auditing Standards
and which are described in the panying jule of and quoestioned cosis as items 2011-6, 2011-10 and 2011-11.




REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

The governmant did not respond to the findings and questioned cosis identified in our audit. Section 2-7-515, Montana Code
Annotated, states that the governmant should respond to any findings in the audit report within 30 days after the receipl of the final
audit report.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, the governing board, others within the entity, the Montana
Department of Administration and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

6%.;55 4‘ Aﬂt&ftﬂ 74

December 8, 2011

OLnEss & ASSOCIATES, P. C.

BRENT D. OLNEss, CPA Cermien PusLic ACCOUNTANTS

Curt D, Wrss, CPA

Enxesy |, Ouniss, CPA

2810 CENTRAL AVENUE, SUITE B
BILLINGS, MONTANA 59102
[406) 2526230
FAX (406) 245-6922

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of County Commissioners
Fargus County
Lewistown, Montana

Compliance

We have audited Fergus County, Montana's (the govemment) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the

OMB Circular A-133 Compliance that could have & direct and material effect on each of the govemment's major federal

programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The govemnment's major federal programs are Identified in the summary of auditor's results
ction of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibllity of the govemment's management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the govemnment’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
Stales; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occured. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, about the go I's pliance with thoseo requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the dircumstances. We believe thal our audit provides a reasonable basls for our apinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the government's comp with those requ

In our opinion, the government complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direet and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011,

|nternal Control Over Compliance
Management of the govemment Is respensible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the

reg: ts of laws, reg NS, is, and grants applicable fo federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the g Ws i 1 control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program o determine the auditing p ! for the ing our opinion on compliance and 10 test and

of exp
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
government’s intemal control over compliance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the praceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknasses and
therefore, there can be no assurance thal all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been ideniified.
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider 1o be material
weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal contral over compliance exists when the design or operation of @ control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the nomal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and comect,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal pragram on a timely basis, A material woaknoss in internal conirol
ovar compliance is @ deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is reasonable
possibility that material nencompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will nat be prevented, or detecled and
corracted, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in intemal control over compliance ibed in the ying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as ltem 2011-12 Lo be material weaknesses.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND
MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE

WITH OMEB CIRCULAR A-133 (CONTINUED)

The government did not respond to the findings
states that the government should respond to any

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, the goveming board, ofhers within the entity, the Montana
Department of Administration and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used

by anyone other than these specified parties.
Ohhass < Assetiafes, P

December 8, 2011

and questionad costs identified In our audit, Section 2-7-515, Montana Code Annotated,
findings in the audit report within 30 days after the receipt of the final audit report.
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FERGUS COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Endad June 30, 2011

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Type of auditor's report issued: qualified

Internal control aver financial reporting:

» Material weakness|es) identified? X yes no
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X yes none reported
Noncompilance material to the financial statemants noted? X __ yes no
FEDERAL AWARDS:
Intamal control over major programs:
» Material weaknesses identified? X yes no
« Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X ___none reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordanca with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A<1337 X__yes no
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers Namo of Fedaral Program or Cluster
20.106 Airport Improvement Program
Securs Payments for Stales and Counlies
10.665 Containing Federal Lands
Dollar threshold used to distinguish betwoen type A and type B
programs? $300,000
Audites qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X __no

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
2011-1. Fl PARATI

Criteria: We were engaged lo assist in the preparation of the government's financial statemants and schedule of expenditures
of federal awards (SEFA). The government ensures the quality of its financial slatemants and SEFA by engaging a qualiied
audit firm with expertise in governmental audits and by reading a preliminary draft of the financial statements.

Condition: The government does not have specific controls in place to review the selection and application of accounting
principles and resulting disclosures and presentations within the financial statements and SEFA.

Cause: The govemment |s a small organization with limited resources.

Effect: It is common within the govermmental sector to rely on the audit firm to prepare the financial statements and SEFA;
however, an audit firm cannol be considered part of the govemment's intemal conltrol by professional standards currently in
effect. Since some p jons and discl may be material to the financial statements and SEFA, this weakness in
internal control would be classified as material.

Recommendation: The government should continue to read its draft financial statements and SEFA and ensure the quality of
the document and the preparer.
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2011-2.
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2011-5.

FERGUS COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

PO ENT ORD|
Critaria: U.S. g iy d ) principles require the OPEB lisbility and related expense be recorded in the
financial statements.

Condition: The government did not record the other post empioyment benefit (OPEB) liability and related expense (GASB
Statement No. 45) in the financial statements.

Cause: The ent did not engage an actuarial firm to assist in determining the OPEB liabllity and related expense as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Effect: The govemmental activities, business-type activities and proprietary funds' liabliities are understated, nel assels are
overstated and expenses are understatad.

Rec: dation: The g
SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

Criteria: Segregation of dutles refers lo assigning tasks among personnel so that no one person handles substantially all
aspects of a transaction,

t should engage an actuarial firm to determine the OPER liability and related expense.

Condition: In many financial areas, including federal award programs, the govemment lacks segregation of duties.

Cause: The extent to which the governmant can segregate duties is limited based on the number of personnel, their skill set
and work load, and organizational structure.

Effect: The risk of emors or imegularities occuming and nol being detected in a timely manner increases when a lack of
segregation of duties exists.

Recommendation: There are inherent inefficiancies with full segregation of duties and inherent risks with the lack of
segregation of duties. The cost versus benefits for both should be considered. The government should continue to evaluate
its segregation of duties and when possibie assign tasks to strengthen controls.

J TH T

CrilafimAreoomikaﬁonofﬂnmomwIimawmmmbaginmﬂmdingﬂmmh&mmshwdbﬁpmpamm
detormine that all transactions have been recorded properly and to discover erors and iregularities. Further, a formal fime
pay reconciliation is a useful tool in evaluating and i tanding time pay balances.

Condifion: The Justice of the Peace office does not perform a monthly time pay account reconciliation.

Cause: Unknown.

Effect: Mot reconciling lrmimepayucwmisunamuﬁyhasismrstatmmoﬂmrpmblmsmbgﬂnmhemmgaizad
and resolved on a timely basis.

Recommendation: The Justice of the Peaca office should prepare a formal reconcliation of time pay activity Lo the beginning
and ending time pay balances on a monthly basis. Once complatad, the raconciliation should be reviewed and approved by
the Justice of the Peace.

COUNTY FAIR
Criteria: Tickel reconciliation forms provide effective cash conlrois over admission charges.

Condition: Fair gate receipts are not formally accounted for through ticket reconciliation forms. Collections were placed in a
bag with a nole attached as to how many tickets the ticket gallers thought they had sold. Further, for night shows and fair
entertainment events, reconciliation reports that are generated from the fair's ticket management software were not printed
i diately after the conclusion of the events and used to reconclle tickets sold 10 cash collacted. The reconciliation reports
wers only printed upon request of the County Treasurer when recelpfing fair cash collections.

Causa: Unknown.
Effect: Cash controls are weakened.
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Recc dation: We end the polickes and procedures and overall operation of the fair be reviewed and
updated to strenglhened intemal control over the fair operations and cash collections. Once formalized, it should be expected
that the fair manager and fair employees adhera to the established procedures.

D ROCEDU Y P, TAX

Criteria: The county s considerad a semiweekly depositor for federal payroll tax deposit purposes. Under the semiweekly
daposit schedule, employment taxes for Wednesday, Thursday, andfor Friday paydays are required to be deposited by the
following Wednesday, Deposit taxas for Saturday, Sunday, Monday, and/or Tuesday paydays must be made by the following
Friday. Semiweekly schedule depositors have at least 3 business days to make a doposit. if any of the 3 weekdays after the
end of a semiweekly period is a legal holiday, you will have an additional day for each day that is a lagal holiday to make the

requirod deposit. For pla, if a i y schedule dep ACCUS taxes for payments made on Friday and the
following Monday is a legal holiday, the deposit r lly due on Wet {ay may be made on Thursday (this allows 3
business days to make the deposit).

Condition: The county does not have procedures in place to ensure the imely deposit of payroll taxes,
Cause: Unknown.

Effact: During fiscal year 2011, the clerk and recorder’s office Incurmed and paid $6,348.01 in penalties and Interest Lo the
Internal Rovenue Service bacause certain payroll tax deposits were not made in a fimely manner,

Recommendation: We recommeand procedures be developed 1o ensure the timely deposil of payroll taxes in order to avoid late
payment penalties and interest.

GRANT MANAGEMENT

Criteria: Grant funding is a significant portion of Fergus County's annual operating budget. The has multiple locations
with substantial decentralization of department heads and management. It is important that a highly-developed, well-
communicated, and consistent grant management system be maintained.

Condition: Most of the major grant funded functions and activiies axist cutside of the courthouse at various locafions.
Currently, there are no existing policies and | to ensure thal grants are managed in a consistent or uniform manner

and in accordance with all grant terms and condifions. Further, no ono parson is in charge of identifying, organizing and
monitoring federal and state grants.

Cause: Unknown,
Effect: Potential non-compliance with grant tarms and conditions.

Recommendation: The County shauld identify, in detail, the various grant funded activities existing within the County and how
and where Lhey are administered. The County should hen designate or assign the task of organizing monitoring
federal and state grants. The individual would be responsible for the following: a). dlassification of grant revenues b).
maintalning complete and organized grant files, including the grant application, comespond with the granting agency,
draw requests, evidence of monitoring any special grant terms and conditions and the close out report that agrees with the
accounting records, ¢). developing adequate cash managemant procedures, d). monitoring match requirements and, when
applicable, ). follow up with subrecipients.

RECONCILE PAYROLL WAGE BASES

Crileria: To ensure the accuracy of payroll setup, the various wage bases (unemployment, workers compensation, social
sacurity, medicare and federal wages) reported on the federal and state payroll reports should be reconclled at end of each
payroll period.

Condition: The various wage bases reported on the federal and state payroll reports were not reconciled.

Cause: Unknown.
Effect: Emors in the payroll setup may occur and not be detected in a timely manner.

Recommendation: To ensure the accuracy of payroll setup, we recommend the various wages bases be reconciled at the end
of each payroll period.
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2011-9. CLAIMS

Crileria: The county's clalms processing procedures require a Fergus Counly claim form be prepared for all disbursements.
The claims are to be supported by sufficient documantation and contain the signatures of at least two commissioners and the

clerk and recorder.
Condition: Claims were processed and paid without sufficient documentation and/or the required approvals.
Cause: Intemal processing controls were not adhered fo.
Effect; internal controls are weakened.
Recommendation: The county should adhare to its claims processing procedures.
2011-10.STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATES

Criteria: Per Section 18-2-422, MCA all public works contracts and the bid specifications for those conlracts must contain (1) &
provision stating for each job classification the standard prevailing wage rate, including fringe benefits, that the contractors and
each

emgplayers shall pay during construction of the project; (2) a provisi i

and employer to maintain

payroll records in a manner readily capabie of being ceriified for submission to the Dey of Labor & Industry for not less
than 3 years afler tha contractor's or employer's completion of work on the project; and (3) a provision requiring each

contractor to post a statement of all wages and fringe benefits.

Condition: The bid advertisament and contracts for the jail roof repair and fair campground electrical upgrade projects did not

contain the required state prevalling wage rate language.
Cause: Unknown
Effect: Failure to include these provisions in a public works contract relieves the contractor from the

o pay

the

standard prevalling wage rate and places the obligation on the public contracting agency. (MCA 18-2-403(8); ARM 24.17. 144)

Recommendation: All public works contracts and the bid specifications for those contracts should contain the provisions that

will satisfy the requirements of the Montana Prevailing Wage statutes.
2011-11.COMPETITIVE BIDDING

Criteria: Per Section 7-5-2301, MCA, a contract for the purchase of any vehicle, road machinery or other machinery,

apg , appliances, equif
may not be entered into by a County governing body without first publishing a notice calling for bids.

or materials or supplies or for construction, repalr, or maintenance in excess of $50,000

Candition: The county contracted o repair the courthouse roof for $116,000 and purchased weed chemicals for $53,000

without going through the formal bid process.
Cause: Unknown

Effect: Moncompliance with stale procurement statutes.

Recommendation: A contract for any purchass in excess of $50,000 should be formally advertised for bid in accordance with

Section 7-5-2301, MCA.
SECTION Ill - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
2011-12.ALL MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Findings 20111 and 2011-3 apply to these federal award programs.
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_____ PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS STATUS
2010-1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION CONTINUED DISCLSOQURE

2010-2. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY NOT RECORDED NOT IMPLEMENTED

2010-3, SEGREGATION OF DUTIES CONTINUED DISCLOSURE
2010-4, SELF-INSURANCE FUND NET ASSETS/RESERVES IMPLEMENTED

2010-5, JUSTICE OF THE PEACE TIME PAY ACCOUNTING NOT IMPLEMENTED
2010-8. CASH MANAGEMENT IMPLEMENTED

2010-7. GRANT MANAGEMENT NOT IMPLEMENTED
2010-B, COUNTY FAIR NOT IMPLEMENTED
2010-9. EXTERMAL EMPLOYMENT POLICY IMPLEMENTED
2010-10.RECONCILE PAYROLL WAGE BASES NOT IMPLEMENTED
2010-11.COMPETITIVE BIDDING NOT IMPLEMENTED

2010-12.GROSS RECEIPTS TAX
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